CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
' 508, indra Prakash, 21, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi - 110001
Phone : 011-43516377 » E-mall : contact@apnco.org

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Sepser Real Estate Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We, have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sepset Real Estate Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, its loss and total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on thar date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SA’s) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies'Act, 2013. Out responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Dircctors is responsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact, Reporring under this section is not applicable as no other information is
obtained at the date of this auditor's report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the prepacation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial peeformance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Fompnny in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
snfcg\.mrding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
sclection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating cffectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
tfcords, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole ace
frec from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs; we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for onc resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obrain an undesstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. '

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management. ’

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If
we conclude that 2 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report, Iowever, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern,




+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosurcs, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative matersiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the Financial Statement.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the plnnnc(} scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

.Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure A’
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Oxder, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph h(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014;

(c) The Balance Sheer, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

(€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

() The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph h(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014;

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating cffectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
‘Annexure B, Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the Company’s internal financial conteols over financial reporting,




() :;/ithc respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
e Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion’ i i
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025.

There Were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025.

iv. (a) The I\?ana_gement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
&o;‘n borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons ot entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

COt‘npmy (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; '

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, no funds have been reccived by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiacies) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on the audit proceduses’ that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(¢), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v, The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year.

As stated in note 51 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included test
checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April 2024, has uscd an
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have feature of recording audit
trail (edit Jog) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the softwares except that, the audit trail logs were not cnabled for changes
made using privileged access rights for direct data changes at the database level. Further, during the
cousse of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with
other than the consequential impact of the exception given above. Furthermore, the audit trail has
been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention except that
the audit trail at the databasc level for the Company has not been preserved in the accounting
softwage for the pegiod 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024.

vi.




(i) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company did not pay any remuneration to its directors during the year.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number.: 005975N

Y

Aashish K Verma
Partner

Place: Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, based on the audit procedures
performed for the puspose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial statements of the Company
and taking into considesation the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and
other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief,

we report that:
() . Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets:

(8 (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative derails and situation of propexty, plant and equipment.

(B)  The Company does not have Intangible assets. Accordingly, clause 3 (i)(2)(B) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) The property, plant and equipment has been physically verified by the management during
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company

and the nature of its asscts.

(9 The Company does not have any immovable property. Accordingly, clause 3 (i)(c) of the
Order is not applicable. '

(d) The Company has not revalued its Propezty, Plant and Equipment during the year.

(6) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly reporting under clause 3()(¢)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(] (@) The inventories held by the Company comprise stocks of units in completed projects and
work in progress of the projects under development. Having regard to the nature of the
Inventory, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory by way of
verification of title deeds, site visits conducted, and continuous project progress monitoring
by competent persons at reasonable intervals during the year, and no material discrepancies

were noticed on such physical verification.

(b) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carricd out by us, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of

security of current assets. Accordingly, clause 3(if)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(ii) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, during the year, the Company has not made any investments
in or provided any guarantee or security ot geanted any loans or advances in the nature of
Joans, secured or unsecured to firms, Limited Liabilicy Partnerships and Compaaies. The
Company has granted interest free unsecured loans to companies during the year as below:




a) During the year, the Company has granted interest free unsecured loans to companics.
The details of the same are given below:
(Rs. in lakhs
Loans (refer note 13)

Particulars

| Aggregate amount granted during the year
Others

- Fellow Subsidiaries

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

Others
- Fellow Subsidiaries 16,559.51

18,399.04

(b) According to the information, explanation and representation providFd to us an.d
based on verification carried out by us, the Company has not made any investments in
or provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured to firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and Companies but
has provided unsecured loans to Companies. However, the Company has granted
unsccured loans to Companies at nil interest rate which is lower than the mn.rkct
rate of interest (refer note 46). In respect of such loans, we have not been provided
with adequate cxplanation of the bencfits, if any, accruing to the Company for
giving such loans, we are unable to comment as to whether the terms and
conditions of grant of such: loans, are, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the

Company.

©) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based
on verification carried out by us, in respect on loans granted, the schedule of repayment
of principal has been stipulated wherein the principal amounts are repayable on demand
and since the repayment of such loans has not been demanded, in our opinion, repayment
of the principal amount is regular. )

d) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based
on verification carried out by us, there is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted
to company. Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based
on verification carried out by us, no loans or advances in the nature of loans granted by
the Company which have fallen due during the year, have been renewed or extended or
fresh loans granted to scttle the over dues of existing loans given to the same parties.
Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

D According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, the Company has granted unsccured loans
which are repayable on demand, as per details below:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars All Pardies Promoters Related Parties

=

Apggregate of Joans
- Repayable on demand (A) 16,559.51 - 16,559.51
» Agreement  does  not

specify any terms or period - = f
of repayment (B)

"Total (A+B) 16,559.51 . 16.559.51
Percentage of loans 3 100.00%




(i)

)

)
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(vii)

@)

@
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According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections
185 and 186 of the Companics Act, 2013 in respect of the loans granted and investments
made, and guarantees and security provided by it, as applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not accepted deposits or deemed deposits to
which the dicectives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73
to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under, are applicable. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pucsuant to
the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of Company’s products/secvices and are of
the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services

‘tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service fax, dury of

customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authoritics. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in

respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from

the date they became payable. :

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us, the dues
outstanding of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Exaise, Value
added rax, Cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of dues | Amount Period to Forum where
statute (In'Rs. which the dispute is
Lakhs) amount pending
relates
Income Tax Income Tax AY. 2014-15 CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 8516 .
Goods and GST . F.Y. 2018-19 | Appellate Authority
Services Tax 30.72 (State)
Act 2017

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions were sucrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) that has not
been recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of its loans or
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. The company does not have
any borrowings from financial institutions or government.

According ro the information and explanations given to us including conficmations received
from banks and other lenders and written representation received from the management of
the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not
been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or other
lender,




®)

(i)
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(xiv)
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised by the Company on shost term basis have not been utilised for long teem pugposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiadies as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, the Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of

the Order is not applicable. '

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

No repost under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, there are no whistle-blower complaints reccived by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, all transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. Further, the derails of
such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required
under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Pacty Disclosures specified in
Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of

the Act,

(a) Tn our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal
audit sysrem and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the

Companies Act 2013,
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(xv)

(xvi)

(i)

(i)

(xix)

(xx)

®

®)

L) Tht.: Company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit.
Accordingly, clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

:\cc.:ordir}g to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification cardied out by us, during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash‘t_mnsact.ions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

Thc Company is not rcc!uired to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
lndl?. Act, 1934, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (2) and (b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. .

The Cor‘npa.ny is not a Core Investment Company and there are no Core Investment
Companies in the Group. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (c) and (d) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 992.37 lakhs in the curcent financial year 2024-
25 but has not incurred any cash loss during the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions and subject to the Note no. 53(d), nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at

* the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the

balance shect date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audir report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

The Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regards to Corporate Social Responsibility
are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Fizm's Registration Number: 005975N

A\
Aatbish K Verma
Partnes

Membership Number: 5278 \
UDIN: 25527886BPOJQL17
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Place: Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

With reference to the Annexuce B referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 of even date.

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

\Y{c ?mvc audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Sepset Real Estate
Limited (‘the Company’) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Insdtute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"), These responsibilitics include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and cfficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely prepasation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and both, issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require thar we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated cffectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves pecforming procedures to obrtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an undesstanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk thar a marerial weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
starements for exteenal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's




internal financial controls with refecence to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accuratcly and faidly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
gencrally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expendituces of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
rsuonablc assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements-
duc to'ercor or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with' reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issucd by ICAL

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 005975N

Aashish K Verma
Partner

Place: Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025



Sepset Real Estate Limited

All amount in ¥ lakhs, unlcss otherwise stated

Balance Sheet as at Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1. ASSETS
Non-current asscts
(a) Property, plant and cquipment 6 78.69 86.86
(b) Finandial Asscts
Other Finanaal asscts 7 6.89 17.73
(c) Deferred tax asscts, net 18 0.25 -
(d) Non-current tax assets, net 8 30.99 59.03
116.82 163.62
Current assets
() Inventones 9 11,061.95 13,261.62
(b) Finandial Assets
Trade receivables 10 862.07 490.41
Cash and cash equivaleats 1 6.62 30.09
Other bank balances 12 5.06 5.06
Loans 13 16,233.50 316.00
(c) Other current assets 14 (658.47 504.75
28,827.67 14,607.93
Total of Assets 28,944.49 14,771.55
IL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 5.00 5.00
(b) Other equity (11,412.24) (9,102.29)
(11,407.24) (9,097.29)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilitics
(a) Finandal liabilitics
Other financial liabilitics 16 A - 5795 9.96
(b) Provisions 17 A 18.87 1274
(c) Deferred tax liabilities, net 18 - 1.46
(d) Other non-current liabilitics 19 A 14.17 4.37
90.99 28.53
Current liabilities
(s) Financial habilities
Botowings 20 37,335.86 19,843.71
Trade payables 21
(A) wtal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises; 1.24 7.24
(B) wal outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 690.60 1,199.52
Odher financial habilities 16 B 173.56 245.36
() Other current liabilitics 198 2,058.97 2,544.13
(¢) Provisions 17 B 0.51 035
40,260.74 23,840.31
Total of Equity and Liabilities 28,944.49 14,771.55

Summary of material accounting policies 5
‘The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements

“T'his is die balance sheet refersed 1o in our report of even date.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co,
Charsered Accountants
Firm's Regisyation Number: 00597

(N
Austhsh ¥ Vermd

Janner

Place: 12elhi
Date: 27 May 2025

@
), Nrora

Director
DIN: 09643877

N
K@#& \e Board of Directors

DDIN: 09655408



Scpsct Real Estate Limited

All amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Statement of profit and loss for the Note Year ended 31 March
2025 2024

Revenue
Revenue from operations 22 1,847.70 5,226.96
Other income 23 7.08 5.94
Total of Revenue 1,854.78 5,232.90
Expenscs
Cost of revenue 24

Cost of materals consumed during the year 1,414.06 1,172.78

(Increase) /Decrease in real estate properties 1,233.71 2,647.77 2,914.17 4,086.95
Employee benefits expense 25 96.17 58.68
Finance costs 26 4.16 2.64
Deprediation and amortisation expense 6 11.70 10.61
Other expenses 27 113.69 708.02
Total of Expenses &873.49 4,866.90
(Loss)/ Profit before exceptional and tax (1,018.71) 366.00
Exceptional items 52 (1,291.98) =
(Loss)/Profit before tax (2,310.69) 366.00
Tax expense 28

Cugrent tax (including earlier year tax) 0.02 0.01

Deferred tax charge/(credit) (1.71) (0.52
(Loss)/Profit after tax 53,309.00! 366.51
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plan (0.95) 0.46,

Total comprehensive income for the year (2,309.95) 366.05
Eamings per equity sharc 29
Equity share of par value 2 10/- cach

Basic (%) (4,618.00) 733.00

Diluted () (4,618.00) 733.00
Summary of material accounting policics 5

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of cven date

For Agarwal Prakash & Co. For
Chartered Accountants

Fiom's Registration Number:

Aasshish K Verma
Partner
Membership Number: 527

Place: Dethi
Date; 27 May 2025

ind¢¥/Arora
Director
DIN: 09643877

beh mam of Directors

\W

Rashmi Burman
Dicector
DIN: 09655408



Sepsct Real Estate Limited

All amounc in & lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31 March
2025 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Profit/(loss) before income tax for the yeac (2,310.69) 366.00
Adjustments for :
Interest on security deposit 4.15 0.14
Interest expense on taxation - 2.50
I pense on debentuces 0.01 -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 11.70 10.61
[nterest income on fixed deposits (0.35) (0.34)
Interest income on income tax refund (1.60) -
Interest income on security deposits (3.83) -
Loss oa sale /written off of property, plant and equipment - 0.18
Provision for bad and doubtful debrs 28.12 -
Provision for gratuity and comp d absences 5.34 237
Exceptional items 1,291.98 -
Balances watten off 0.11 1.70
Balance wrirtten back (0.29) (2.65)
Operating (loss)/profit before working capital changes and other adjustments (975.33) 380.51
Working capital changes and other adjustments
Trade reccivables (399.89) (454.91)
Other financial assets & other asscts (143.20) 62.19
Inventories 1,233.70 291417
Trade Payables (514.92) 173.11
Other financial liabilites, other liabilities and provisions 1 (499.13) (1,737.90)
Cash(used in) / gencrated from operating activities ¢ (1,298.79) 1,337.16
Income tax (paid) / refund, net ! 29.87 (35.70)
Net cash (used in) / g d from opcrating (1,268.92) 1,301.47
B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchasc of propesty, plant and equipment (3.59) (5.03)
Inter-corporate loans given to related pastics (18,399.04) (316.00)
Inter-corporate loans received back from related parties 2,155.53 -
Interest received on fixed deposit 035 0.32
Net cash (used in) investing activitics (16,246.70) (320.73)
C. Cash flow from financing activities: (Refer Note: 48)
Proceeds from issue of non-convertible debenrures 20,000.00 -
Proceeds from intee-corporate borrowings 1,956.50 5,630.13
Repayment of intee-corporate borrowings (4,464.35) (6,609.20)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 17,492.15 (979.07)
D. (Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents, net (A+B+C) (23.47) 167
E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 30.09 28.42
F. Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year (D+E) 6.62 30.09
G. Reconciliation of cash and cash cquivalents as per cash flow statcment
Cash on hand - -
Balances with banks
-'In current accounts 6.62 30.09
6.62 30.09
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statemeats. =

This is the statement of cash flows referced to in our report of even date \\
the Board of Directors

For Agarwal Prakash & co. %ﬂ'
Charteced Accountants
Firm'g Registration Number: 005975N

p @).IJ'Y'O'A

Aadhis crma hmi Burman
Pactner Director
Membership Number: DIN: 09655408

Place: Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025




Sepset Real Estate Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 March 2025

(A) Equity share capital*

All amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars Opening balance as| Issue of equity Balance as at Issue of equity share Balance as at
at share capital 31 March 2024 capital during the year | 31 March 2025
.01 April 2023 during the year
Equity share capital 5.00 - 5.00 - 5.00
(B) Other equity
Reserves and Other Comprehensive
surplus Income
Particulars Total
Retained earnings . et of
defined benefit plan
balance as at 01 April 2023 (9,467.64) "~ (0.70) (9,468.34)
Profit/ (Loss) for the year 366.51 - 366.51
Other comprehensive income - (0.46) (0.46)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (9,101.13) (1.16) (9,102.29)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (2,309.00) - (2,309.00)
Other comprehensive income - (0.95) (0.95)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (11,410.13) (2.11) (11,412.24)

*Refer Note - 15 for details

The accompanying notes are integral part of the finaacial statements

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf 3 the/Board of Directors
\\J

ForAgarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants

g o
i ( . 005975N |3

Aashish’K Verma New Delhi
Partner

Place: Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025

ora
Director
DIN: 09643877

Kot Brusrnom

Rashmi Burman
Director
DIN: 09655408




Sepset Real Estate Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

1. Nature of principal activities
Sepset Real Estate Limited (“the Company”) having CIN: U45400DL2007PLC163018 was incorporated on 07 May 2007
and is engaged in the business of real estate and other related and ancillary activities. The Compaay is domiciled in India
and its registered office is situated at Office No. 202, 2™ Floor, A-18, Rama House, Middle Circle, Connaught Place, New
Delhi- 110001.

2. General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards as
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act) - read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA?)), as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

@) which is the functional cucrency of the Company,

“The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘TNR’ o
ess than rupees five hundred

and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except where otherwise indicated. Figures |
are being presented as 0.00. '

Entity specific disclosure of material accounting policies where Ind AS permits options is disclosed hereunder.

The Company has assessed the materiality of the accounting policy information which involves exercising judgements and
considering both qualitative and quantitative factors by taking into account not only the size and nature of the item or
condition but also the characteristics of the transactions, events or conditions that could make the information more
likely to impact the decisions of the users of the financial statements.

Entity’s conclusion that an accounting policy is immaterial does not affect the disclosures requirements set out in the

accounting standards.
Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly- issued Accounting Standard is initially adopted
or 2 revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in the Accounting Policy hitherto adopted.

The financial statements :for the year ended 31 March 2025 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 27 May 2025. The revisions to the financial statements are permitted by the Board of Directors after
obraining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

3. Recent accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended 31 March 2025, MCA notified
new accounting standard Ind AS 117- Insurance Contracts, which has no impact on the compaay financial statements.
Further the MCA has made certain amendments to Ind AS 116- Leases, in particularly related to sale and lease back

transactions, which has an applicability from 1 Apil 2024, and has no significant impact on financial statements.

On 7 May 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These
amendments aim to provide clearer guidance on assessing currency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when
currencies are not readily exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Apnl
2025. The Company is currently assessing the probable impact of these amendments on its financial statements.

4. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial
assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measure at fair values as explained in relevant
accounting policies. Fair valuations related to financial assets and financial liabilities are categorised into level 1, level 2
and level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable.

5. Summary of material accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement bases summarised
below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements.

5.1 Current versus non-cusrent classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in Companies Act 2013. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-curreat assets and

non-current liabilities, as the case may be.
5.2 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control is transferred and is accounted net of rebate and taxes. The Company applies the
revenue recognition criteria to each nature of the revenue transaction as set out below.
Raesenne from sale of properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognized when the performance obligations
petformance obligations are considered to be complete when the property is ready




Sepset Real Estate Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

(occupancy certificate reccived from the issuing authority) ie. offer for possession can be issued to the buyers by issuing
the possession request letter.

The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price.
The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
transfetring property to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes).
The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed consideration, variable consideration (if
reversal is less likely in future), or both.

For each performance obligation identified, the Company determines at contract inception whether it satisfies the
performance obligation over time or satisfies the performance obligation at 2 point in time. If an entity does not satisfy a
performance obligation over time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time. A receivable is recognised by
the Company when the control is transferred as this is the case of point in time recognition where consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required.

When cither party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a contract asset
or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance and the customer’s payment.

The costs estimates are reviewed periodically and effect of any change in such estimate is recognized in the period such
changes are determined. However, when the total estimated cost exceeds total expected revenues from the contracts, the
loss is recognized immediately.

Revenue from sale of land

Revenue from sale of land is recognised in the year in which the underlying agreements are executed and there exists no
uncertainty in the ultimate collection of consideration from buyer.

Interest income

Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Revenue from facility maintenance services

Revenue from facility maintenance services is recognized on accrual basis and billed to the respective customer, on a
perodic basis.

Service income

Interest on delayed receipts, cancellation/forfeiture income and transfer fees from customers are recognized on accrual .
basis except in cases where ultimate collection is considered doubtful.

5.3 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if
capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended
use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
statement of profit and loss as incurred. '

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives) i

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful
lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Assct class Useful life
Plant and equipment 12 - 15 years
Office equipment 5 years
’ Computers 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

De-recognition

|
i An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised is de-recognised upon dispo
benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition//of;




Sepset Real Estate Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognised.

5.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, based on
internal or external factors, If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or
the cash generating unit. If such recoverable amount of the asset or cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an
impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a
previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recognized are accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

5.5 Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recogrition and initial measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement

i Debt instruments at amortised cost — A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

® The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows; and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

i Mutual funds — All mutual funds in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL).

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Financial liabilities

Recogpition and initial measurement — amortised cost

All financial liabilifies are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of the
financial liabilities is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement — Amortised cost

Subsequent to initial measurement, all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. '

Recognition, initial and subsequent measurement — fair value

A financial liability is classified as fair value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL)) if it is ‘designated as such upon initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured (initial and subsequent) at fair value and net gains/losses,
including any interest expense are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of finangial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled o expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the

original Jiability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is apAft settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.,




Sepset Real Estate Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

5.6 Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss for financial assets. The Company factors historical trends and forward- looking information to assess
expected credit losses associated with its assets and impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement
of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected
credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Otber financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

5.7 Inventories

Land other than that transferred to real estate properties under development is valued at lower of cost or net realizable
value.

Real estate properties (developed and under development) includes cost of land under development, internal and external
development costs, construction costs, and development/construction materals, borrowing costs and related overhead
costs and is valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs of necessary to make the sale.

5.8 Employee benefits !
Defined contribution plan

The Company’s contribution to provident fund is charged to the statement of profit and loss or inventorized as a part of
real estate project under development, as the case may be. The Company’s contributions towards provident fund are
deposited with the regional provident fund commissioner under a defined contribution plan.

Defined benefit plan

The Company has unfunded gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on
retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. The liability recognised in the
balance sheet for defined benefit plans as the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the reporting date.
Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. Actuarial gains/losses resulting
from re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive income.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long -term
employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to be availed more than
one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent
actuary using the projectzd unit credit method as on the :cpon.ing date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
zd;ustmcms and changes in actuarial assumptions are recorded in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which
such gains or losses arise,

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits comptise of employee costs such as salaries, bonus etc. is recognized on the basis of the
amount paid or payable for the period during which services are rendered by the employee.

5.9 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate
of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates, Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of

money js mateyial.
Contingent liability is disclosed for:

®  Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events notwh




Sepset Real Estate Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

»  Dresent obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, related
asset is recognized.

Onerous Contract

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the expected benefits to be
derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any
impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

5.10 Significant judg: t and estimat

in applying accounting policies

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the related disclosures.
Significant management judgements

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be
utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for i

pairment of

ts — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of

assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deteroration of recoverable
amount of the assets.

Recoverability of advances/receivables — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, the management assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the

Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual future
outcome may be different from this judgement.

Classification of leases ~ The Company enters into leasing arrangements for varous premises. The assessment
(including measurement) of the lease is based on several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of
Jeased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to extend/terminate etc. After the commencement date, the Company
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its
ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to extend ot to terminate.

Significant estimates

Revenue and inventories — The estimates around total budgeted cost i.e. outcomes of underlying construction and
service contracts, which further require assessments and judgements to be made on changes in work scopes, claims and
other payments to the extent they are probable and they are capable of being reliably measured. For the purpose of
making estimates for claims, the Company used the available contractual and historical information. The estimates of the

saleable area are also reviewed periodically and effect of any changes in such estimates is recognised in the period such
changes are determined,

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of

depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these
estimates relate t technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) ~ Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial

instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involyes developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument,
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Summary of material accounting policies and other
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for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Note-6

Property, plant and equig

Tangible Assets Plant and Office Computers F and Total

hinery quip fixtures

Gross carrying amount

Opening balance as at 01 April 2023 146.02 19 232 5.49 155.74
Additions - - 5.05 - 5.05
Disposals/assets written of€ (0.19) (1.67) (232) (5.49) 9.67)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 145.83 0.24 5.05 - 151.12
Additions i - - - 3.54 3.54
Disposals/assets written off | 2 = e N ) -
Bal as at 31 March 2025 145.83 0.24 5.05 3.54 | 154.66
Ac lated depreciati

Opening balance as at 01 April 2023 54.19 1.69 231 4.96 63.15
Charge for the year ‘ 9.72 0.05 0.48 0.36 10.61
Adjustments for disposals (0.17) (1.67) (2.32) (5.32) (9.49)
Balance as at 31 March 2024, 63.74 0.07 0.46 - 64.27
Charge for the year | 9.72 0.05 1.68 0.25 11.70
Adjustments for disposals - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 73.46 0.12 2.14 0.25 75.97
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2024 82.09 0.17 4.59 - 86.86
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2025 72.37 0.12 2.91 3.29 78.69




Scpsct Real Estate Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other expl y information for the year ended 31 March 2025
. All amount in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note-7
Other financial asscts- non-current
(Unsccured, considered good)
Security deposits 6.89 17.73
6.89 17.73
Note-8

Non-current tax assets, net
Advance income tax, including tax deducted at source

30.99 59.03
30.99 59.03
Note -9
Laventories
Real estatr properties - developed (at cost)
Cost of developed properties 23,540.34 23,340.22
Less: Cost of revenue recognized till date ' (11,515.42) 10,087.94)
12,024.92 . 13,252.28
Construction materials in stock 3.00 9.34
Provision for onerous contracts* 65.9 -
' 11,061.95 13,261.62
_— e

*Dusing the financial year ended 31 Macch 2025, the Company has assessed the financial viability of its ongoing real estate development
project as an onerous contract in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Asscts. Due to adverse market conditions, escalated construction costs, and a reduction in expected sales revenue from the
project, the unavoidable costs of fulfilling the contractual obligations under the project exceed the expected economic bencfits.
Accordingly, the company has recognized a provision of T 965.97 lakhs for onerous contracts on the project.

Note - 10

Trade receivables*
Considered good - Ui d . 835.67
Considered doubtful - which have significant increase in Credit Risk 54.52
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables

490.41

(28.12) -

862.07 490.41
—_— _—
*Trade receivables are pledge against the non- convertible debentures issued by a fellow subsidiary company Tapir Constructions Limited.

As at 31 Masch 2025

Particulars Lessthan6 | 6 monthsto1| 1-2years

2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year

years

() Undisputed trade - 158,08 67299 4.59 - 835.67
receivables - considered good J

(i) Undisputed trade -
receivables - considered
doubtful (Having significant
increase in risk)

Less: Provision for doubtful , , (28.12) (28.12)
trade receivables

(iii) Undisputed trade B
receivables - credit impaired
(iv) Disputed trade receivables 4 - 2 -
considered good

(v) Disputed trade seceivables - 5 :
considered doubtful (Having :

significant increase in risk)
(vi) Disputed trade receivables .

" " - 54.52 54.52

credit impaired




Sepset Real Estate Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other expl y inf ion for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Lessthan6 | 6 months to 1 1-2years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year years
(1) Undisputed trade 167.30, 279.63 2347 14.73 5.28 490.41
receivables - considered good
(1) Undisputed trade - & - a o B,
receivables - considered
doubtful (Having significant
increase in risk)
(i) Undisputed trade S = - _ " R
receivables - credit impaired
(iv) Disputed trade receivables - - = o - =
considered good ‘
(v) Disputed trade receivables - - - s % < <
considered doubtful (Having
significant increase in risk)
(vi) Disputed trade receivables - - - 3 = =

Note - 11

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand - -
Balances with banks

In current accounts . 6.62 30.09
6.62 30.09
— — ———

Note -12

Other bank balances

Baak deposits*

with maturity of more than three months and upto twelve months 5.00 5.00

Interest Accrued on bank deposits 0.06 0.06
5.06 5.06

* Fixed deposits of T 5,00 lakh (excluding accrued interest) (31 March 2024: X 5.00 lakh (excluding accrued interest) has been marked as
Jien towards fire NOC for project to Municipal Corporation of Jodhpur.

Note -13
Loans - Current .
Considered good - U d '
Inter-corporate loans to related parties (refer note 46) 16,233.50 316.00
Credit impaired
Inter-corporate loans to related 326.01 -
partics (refer note 46)
16,559.51 316.00
Less; Impairment for loans (expected ceedit loss) (326.01) -
16,233.50 316.00
Note - 14
Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advance to suppliers/service providess 522.83 482.18
Mobilization advances 6.25 6.25
Prepaid expenses 4.19 11.54
Balances with statutory authorities 125.20 4.78

658.47 504.75
—_—




Scpset Real Estate Limited

Summary of material accounting policics and other pl y inf tion for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 15
Equity share capital
i Authorised Numb A Numb A
Equity share capital of face value of ¥ 10 each 50,000 5.00 » 50,000 5.00
50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

ii Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Equity share capital of face value of ¥ 10 each fully paid up 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00
iii Reconciliation of ber and t of equity sh outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity shares

Balance at the beginning of the year 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

Add: Issued during the year - . o

Less: Redeemed during the year n < 5 5

Balance at the end of the year 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

iv Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and ace entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the remaining assets of the Compaay shall be distributed to the
holders of equity shares in proportion to the number of shares held to the total equity shares outstanding as on that date. All shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

v 50,000 (previous year 50,000) equity shares of the Company is held by holding company namely Embassy Developments Limited (formerly
Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) and its nominees.

vi Details of shareholder holding more than 5% share capital
Name of the equity shareholder Number of shares Number of shares
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited 50,000 50,000
and eadier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) (including nominee shares)

vii Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2025 is as follows :

Promoter Name Share Held by Promoters
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number of % Total of Number of % Total of
shares Shares shares Shares

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India

Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)
Pocksipg nomitnee shiaced 50,000 100 50,000 100
Total 50,000 100 50,000 100

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2024 is as follows :

Promoter Name Share Held by Promoters
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number of % Total of Number of % Total of
shares Shares shares Shares

Embassy Deyelopments Limited (Formerly Equinox India
Developments Limited and carlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

(including nomince shares) 50.000 100 _ )
Lorita Developers Limited (including nominee shares) - - 50,000 100
Total 50,000 100 50,000 100

viii Company does not have any shares issued for consideration other than cash during the immediately preceding five years. Company did not
buy back any shares during immediately preceding five years,
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y of ial ac ing policics and other cxplanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 16
Other financial liabilities - non current
Security deposits 71.83 14.36
Ind AS adjustment for security deposits* (13.88) (4.40)
57.95 9.96

*The Ind AS adjustment for secuity deposits relates to difference of present value of lease related security deposits received and actual
amount received. This will be charged to statement of profit and loss on effective intecest rate method over the tenure of lease.

Other fnancial liabilities - current

Security deposits - 91.75
Accrued employee benefits 0.19 0.38
Expenses payable to
Related Party 0.01 -
Others 173.36 147.23
173.56 245.36
Note - 17
Provisions - non-current
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuiity ( refer note 44) 1327 1017
Compensated absences ( refer note 44) 5.60 2.57
18.87 12.74
Provisions - current
Provision for employee beaefits:
Gratuity ( refer note 44) 0.35 0.28
Compensated absences ( refer note 44) 0.16 0.07
0.51 0.35
Note - 18
Defesred tax liabilities, net
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of :
4.63 4.75

Depreciation and amortisation
Deferred tax assets arising on account of :

(4.88) (3.29)
50.252 1.46
—_—

Provision of employee benefits

Caption wise movement in deferred tax liabilities as follows:

Particulars 01 April 2024 Recognised | 31 March 2025
/reversed in

Deferced tax liabilities arising on:

Property, plant and equip and intangible assets 4.75 0.12) 4.63

Defessred tax assets arising on: > .

Employee benefits (3.29) (1.59) (4.88)

Total 1.46 (1.71) (0.25)

Particulars 01 April 2023 | Recognised | 31 March 2024
/reversed in

Deferred tax liabilities arising on;

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 4.56 0.19 475

Deferred tax assets arising on; -

imployee benelits (2.58) (0.71) (3.29)

Total 1.98 (0.52) 146

Note - 19

Other non-current liahilitics

Ind AS adjustment for security deposits* 14,17 437

14.17 4.37

* The Ind AS adjustment for sccurity deposit relates to difference of present value of lease related security deposits received and actual
amount received, This will be recognized to statement of profit and loss over the lease period using stright line method value,

Other current liabilities

Advances from customers 2,039,26 2,523.90
Payable to Statutory Authorities 19.71 20.23
2,544.13

2,058.97
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Summary of material accounting policics and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Note ~ 20
Borrowing- current
Unsecured loans
Loans and advances from related parties* 17,335.86 19,843.71
Non convertible debentures from related parties (refer note (i) below)** 20,000.00 -
20,00,00,000 (31 March 2024: Nil) 0.0001% Non convertible debentures of face
value of T 10 each to Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India
Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)*

37=335.86 19,843.71

Repayment terms and rate of interest:*
This loan does ot carry any coupon and are interest free and repayable on demand.
**During the year ended 31 March 2025, the company has issucd 20,00,00,000 non convertible debentures of face value of ¥ 10 each,

bearng interest rate of 0.0001% per annum with tenure of 10 years from the date of allotment. These debentures are redeemable anytime
before the expiry of 10 years at the option of issuer as well as investor.

Note -21

Trade payables ~current

Due to micro 20d small enterprises*® 1.24 7.24
Due to related parties 214.14 733.70
Due to others 274.59 171.84

Reteation moncy 201.87 293.98
! 691.84 1,206.76

Trade Payables ageing as at 31 March 2025

Outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars Not due Less than 1 lyearto2 2yearsto3 More than 3 Total
year years years years
@) MSME - 1.24 - - - 1.24
(1) Other thano MSME 201.87 455.71 21.76 412 7.14 690.60

(1) Disputed dues - MSME = 1" - - = .
(iv) Disputed dues - Other - - 5 2 = ;
than MSME

Trade Payables ageing as at 31 March 2024

Outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars Not due Less than 1 lyearto2 2yearsto3 More than 3 Total
year ycars years years
(1) MSME - 7.24 - - - 7.24
(ii) Other than MSME 293.98 889,76 6,14 1.97 1.67 1,199.52

(1ii) Disputed dues - MSME - B - - - A
() Disputed dues - Other . - - - - g
thag MSMZ

*Disclosuse under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act, 2006™) as at:
: 31 March 2025 [31 March 2024

Particulars @ @
i) |the prncipal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year; 1.24 7.24
ii) |Interest due thereon Nil{ Nil
iif) |the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the Nil Nil
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;
iv) [the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been Nil Nil
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this
Act;
v) Jthe amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and Nil| Nil
vi) [the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date Nil| Nil
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23,

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been datég
the basis of information available with the Company,
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Summary of material accounting policies and other exp Yy
Al in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note-22
Revenue from operations
Revenue from real estate properties 1,300.82 4,624.49
Income from maintenance services 382.38 564.49
Interest from customers on overdue balances 18.95 13.43
Service and forfeiture receipts 145.55 24.55
1,847.70 5,226.96
Note - 23
Other income
Balance written back 0.29 2.65
Interest income on fixed deposits 0.35 0.34
Interest income on secusity deposits 3.83 0.17
Interest income on income tax refund 1.60 -
Miscellaneous income 1.01 2.78
_7.28 5.94
Note -24
Cost of revenue
Cost incurred during the year 193.78 39224
(Increase)/decrease in real estate project under development
Opening stock 13,261.62 16,175.79
Closing stock (12,027.91) 1,233.71 (13,261.62) 291417
Operating Expenses 1,220.28 780.54
' 2,647.77 4,086.95
Note -25
Employee benefits expense
Bonus and ex-gratia 11.80 3.64
Contgbution to provident fund 1.41 -
Gratwity and leave encashment (Refer note 44) 5.34 237
Salasies and wages 77.60 52.64
Staff welfase expenses 0.02 0.03
96.17 58.68
Note - 26
Finance costs
J pense on deb 0.01 -
Interest expenses on taxation - 2.50
Interest on security deposit 4.15 0.14
4.16 2.64
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Summary of material accounting policics and other planatory infe

Note - 27

Other expenses

Advertisement expenses

Auditor's remuneration - as auditor (refer note (5) below)
Balance watten off

Bank charges

Brokerage and marketing expenses

Business support expenses

Communication expenses

Travelling and conveyance expenses

Customer incentive and other charges

Insurance expenses

Legal and professional charges

Loss on sale /written off of property, plant and equipment
Miscellaneous expenses

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts
Rates and taxes

Reat expenses

(i) Details of Auditor's remuneration
Auditor's remuneration
Audir fee

Note -28

Income tax

Tax expense comprises of:

Cusrent tax (including easdier year tax)

Deferred tax charge/ (credir)

L tax exp reported in the of profit and loss

for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated

For the year ended

31 March 2025

5.90
0.11
0.01
44.33

0.04
4.08
4.39
7.35
15.88

0.01
28.12
2.85
0.62
113.69

5.90
5.90

0.02

(.71)
(1.69)

For the year ended

31 March 2024

0.24
0.24

0.01

0.52)

0.51

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of

the Compaay at 25,168% and previous year 25,168% and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate

Accounting profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations
Accounting profit/ (loss) before income tax

Effective tax rate
At India’s statutory income tax rate

(2,310.69)
(2,310.69)

25.168%
(581.55)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Tax impact on account of brought forward losses setoff
Deferred tax charge

Adjustment of tax relating to carlier periods

Others

247.84
.71)
0.02
334.19

(L.21)

366.00
366.00

25.168%
92.12

(92.80)

(0.52)
0.01
0.69

(0.51)

‘The company has unabsorbed business losses of ¥ 5,588,52 lakhs (31 March 2024: X 2,219.77 lakhs) on which no deferred tax asset is
created as there is 0o convincing evidence which demonsteates probability of realization of deferred tax asset in the near futuce.
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y of ial ing policics and other exp y information for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amount in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note~29
Eamings per share (EPS)

The Company's Earnings per Shace ("EPS") is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholders. Basic carnings per
share is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed
using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year including share
options, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders for basic earnings (2,309.00) 366.51
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of . (2,309.00) 366.51
dilution

Weighted average ber of equity sh for basic earnings 50,000 50,000
Weighted average ber of equity sh adjusted for the effect of

dilution* 50,000 50,000

*No transaction is there which have impacted the calculation of weighted average number of shares. No other transaction involving
Egquity shares or potential Equity shares is there between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

cquity share

(1) Basic }) (4,618.00) - 733.00
(2) Diluted (%) (4,618.00) 733.00
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Summary of material accounting policies and other expl y information for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Note - 30
A) Financial Instruments by category
For amortised cost instruments, carrying value rep the best esti of fair value.
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised FVTPL FVOCI Amortised
Particulars (See note 1 | (See note 2 cost (Seenote1 | (Seenote2 cost
below) below) below) below)
Financial assets
Trade receivables (net of provision) - - 862.07 - - 490.41
Loaans (net of impairment) - - 16,233.50 - - 316.00
Cash and cash equivalents - - 6.62 - - 30.09
Other bank balances - - 5.06 - - 5.06
Other financial assets - - 6.89 - - 17.73
Total financial assets - - 17,114.14 - - 859.29
Notes

1. These financial assets are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss.
2. These financial assets represent investmeats in equity instruments designated as such upon initial recognition.

‘ 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Particulars FVTPL FVOCI Amortised FVTPL FVOCI Amortised
cost cost

Financial liabilities i

Borrowings (including interest accrued) -l - 37,335.86 - - 19,843.71
Trade payables - - 691.84 - - 1,206.76
Other finandal liabilities - - 231.51 - - 255.32
Total financial liabilities - - 38,259.21 - - 21,305.79

B) Fair value mcasurcments

(i) Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in 'the statement of financial position are grouped into three Levels of a faic
value hicrarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that ace not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data rely as little as possible on eatity specific estimates.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Company does not have any financial assets and financial liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value so no analysis has been

shown for fair value measurements,

ji) Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
Financial ts ed at amortised cost for which the carrying value is the faic value.
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All amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise d

Note - 31

® O

F risk

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The company's risk management is carried out by the board
of directors. The board of directors provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(A) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the compaay. The company's exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and financial assets measured at amortized cost. The company
continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporate this information into its credit risk controls.

a)  Credit risk management
The finance function of the Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system. Internal credit rating is

performed for each class of financial instruments with different characteristics. The Eatity classifies its financial assets into the following
categorics based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.

A: Low credit rsk

B: Moderate credit risk

C: High credit dsk

Assets under credit risk — i

Credit rating Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

A Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.62 30.09
A Trade receivables 835.67 490.41
B Trade receivables g 54.52 -
A Other bank balances . 5.06 5.06
A Loans 16,233.50 316.00
C Loans 326.01 -
A - |Other financial assets 6.89 17.73

The risk parameters are same for all financial assets for all period presented. The Company considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an on-going basis throughout each reporting period.

In general, definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-
economic factors.

b) Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses
The Compaay provides for 12’ month expected credit losses for following financial assets:

As at 31 March 2025
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of
carrying amount at default losses impairment provision
Cash and cash equivalents 6.62 - 6.62
Other bank balances 5.06 - 5.06
Trade receivables 890.19 -28.12 862.07
Loans 16,559.51 326.01 16,233.50
Other financial assets 6.89 - 6.89
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of
carrying amount at default losses impairment provision
Cash and cash cquivalents 30.09 - 30.09
Other bank balances 5.06 - 5.06
T'rade receivables 490.41 - 490.41
Joans 316.00 - 316.00
Other financial asscts 17,73 - 17.73

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach
"The Company’s has recognized provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables, which are outstanding for a significant perod. The
company docs not have any expected credit loss for remaining trade receivables as registry of properties sold is generlly cacried out once

the Company receives the entire payment, During the periods presented, the Compaay_made no write-offs of trade receivables and no
recoveries from recelvables previously written off,
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®)

©

All amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated
Expected credit loss for loans
The Company’s has recognized provision for expected credit loss on loans, which are not expected to be received in near future, based on
the analysis made of the financial position of borrowers. During the periods presented, the Company made no write-offs of loans and no
recovesies from loans previously written off.

Liquidity risk

The company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The
compaay has no outstanding bank borrowings. The company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements.
Company also have an option to arrange funds by taking loans and borrowing from Holding Company/Ultimate Holding
Company/Fellow Subsidiary company. Accordingly no liquidity risk is being perceived.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual matusities for all non-
dedvative financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is insignificant.

31 March 2025 Less than1 | Between 1 | Between 2 | Between 3 and| More than 4 Total
year and 2 years | and 3 years 4 years years

Non-derivatives :

Borrowings 37,335.86' - - - - 37,335.86

Trade Payables 691.84' - - - - 691.84

Other Finandial Liabilities . 23151 - - - - 231.51

Total 38,259.21 - - - - 38,259.21

31 March 2024 | Less than1 | Between 1 | Between 2 | Between 3 and| More than 4 Total
year and 2 years |and 3 years 4 years years

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 19,843.71 - - - - 19,843.71

Trade Payables 1,206.76 - - - - 1,206.76

Other Financial Liabilities 255.32 - - - - 255.32

Total 21,305.79 - - - - 21,305.79

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

Company does not have any foreign currency risks and therefore sensitivity analysis has not been shown.

Interest rate risk
There are no variable rate borrowings hence no senstivity exist for interest rates change.

Price risk
Company does niot have any price risk

[T I
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Note - 32
Revenue related disclosures

A Disaggregation of revenue

¢ the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from real estate properties 1,300.82 4,624.49
Income from maintenance services 382.38 564.49
Total revenue covered under Ind AS 115 1,683.20 5,188.98

B Contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables, assets and contract liabilities from contract with customers:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers 2,039.26 2,523.90
Total contract liabilities 2,039.26 2,523.90
Receivables
Trade receivables 862.07 490.41
Total receivables 862.07 490.41 |

Contzact asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or secvices transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the entity's
obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance. Contract
assets (unbilled reccivables) are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional and contract liabilities are recognised as and
when the performance obligation is satisfied. !

Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the ycar arc as follows:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Contract liabilities Contract liabilities
Advances from customers Advances from customers
Opening balance 2,523.90 4,638.22
Addition/(refund) during the year (45.89) 2,019.76
Adjustment on account of revenue recognised dusing the year (438.75) (4,134.08)
Closing balance 2,039.26 2,523.90

The aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligations as at 31 Masch 2025 is T 2,039.26 lakhs (31
March 2024 ; 2 2,523.90 lakhs) This balance represents the advance received from customers (gross) against real estate properties under
development, The management expects to further bill and collect the remaining balance of total consideration in the coming years. These

balances will be recognized as revenue in future years as per the policy of the Company.

E Reconciliation of revenue from sale of properties and maintenance income with contract revenue:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Contract revenue 1,300.82 4,624.49
Income from maintenance services 382.38 564.49
Revenue recognised 1,683.20 5,188.98
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All amount in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated
Note - 33

Details with respect to the Benami propertics
No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the entity under the Benami Transactions (Peohibitions) Act, 1988 for the year ended 31

March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Note - 34

Undisclosed income
There 1< no such income which has not been disclosed in the books of accounts. No such income is suerendered or disclosed as income during

the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961,

Note - 35
Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
Profit or loss on transactions involving Crypto currency or Virtual Currency

No transaction during the year ended 31
March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Amount of currency held as at the reporting date No transaction during the year ended 31
March 2025 and 31 March 2024

No transaction during the year ended 31

Deposits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypto Currency /
March 2025 and 31 Macch 2024

vartual currency

Note - 36
Ratio Analysis
The following are analytical ratios for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
Particulars N D 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 Variance
Curreat Rano Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.72 0.61 17.33%
Debt Equity Ratio™ Total Debts Shareholder's Equity (3.27) (2.18) 50.05%
Debt Senvice Coverage Ratio*** Eagatogs .avmlzble e Debt Service NA NA NA]
debt services
Return on Equity (ROE)* Net Profit After Taxes gc";i':y“‘ S hkdet’s 0.23 (0.04) (670.27%)
Trade Recavables tumover Reviii r\vcrlngc Trade 273 19.88 (86.25%)
200° Receivable
TI'rade Payables tumover ratio” Pucctitic ubvarvices Average Trade Payable 279 4.97 (43.90%)
. and other expenses
Retum of Capital Employed  |Earning before interest] . y & 3
ROCE)» i Capital Employed 0.20] (0.04) (598.99%)
Iaventory tumover rato Cost of Goods sold | Average Inventory 0.22 0.28 (21.59%)
Ner Capital Tumover Ratio® Revenue Working Capital (0.16) (0.57) (71.45%)
Net Profit Rano” Net profit Revenue (1.25) 0.07 (1882.20%)
Petun on mvestment# :,:)c;“:c — 'l'lmc Weighted Avenge NA NA| NA

“ln the real estate business, revenue along with the corresponding cost to sales is recognised on the point in time basis and hence, the increase
aad decrease will not be directly ascertained on the basis of increase/decrease in business. Accordingly, the current year ratios are not

cmparable with previous year,
# Sance this 1s not an investment company.

“* Due w increase in current borrowings
“*Raue can not be calculated due to no long term boroowing in current year as well as in previous year.

Note - 37

Wilful Defaulter:
No bank or financial institution has declared the company as "Wilful defaulter” during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
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y infor

Details in respect of Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium:
Dunng the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or

share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s)
(“Intermedianes™) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Interm.

by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries).

During the year ended 31 March 2025 the Com

for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated

or entiry(ies), including foreign entities
ediary shall lend or invest in party identified

pany has not received any fund from any party(s) (Fuading Party) with the understanding that

the Company shall whether, dicectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entties identified by or on behalf of the funding party

(*Ulimate Beneficiaties”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, except details given below:

Details of funds received
Details of funding providers | Amount R in lakhs) [ Nature of transaction Purpose
Holding Company (refer note 15.917.50 Non- convertible To fund working capital requirement of subsidiary
46) ke debentures issued companies
Beneficiaries Amount (® in lakhs) | Nature of transaction Purpose
TOXTS a0 AUVanees
Fellow subsidiary companies given (net of amount X ; s s
(refer note 46) 15,917.50 secesel back) foa To fund working capital requirement of fellow subsidiasies
2 dazes)

During the financial year ended on 31 March 2024, no funds were received for given of this nature.
For abovementioned transactions the company has complied with applicable rules and regulation of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note - 39

Relationship with Struck off Companies:

No transaction has been made with the company struck off under section 248 of the

1956 during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note - 40

2o f,

Regi: of ch or

with Registrar

All applicable cases where registration of charges or satisfaction is required with Regis

of Companies:

satisfaction is pending for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Note - 41

Compliance with

ber of layers of companies:
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause
number of Layers) Rules, 2017 and no layers of comp:

during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note - 42

g0

anies has been established be

Loans or advances g

under Companies Act, 2013),

d to the pr X
Loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to the promoters, directors, k

» KMPs and the related parties:
ey managerial persons and the related parties (as defined
cither severally or jointly with any other person during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, that are

Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Compaanies Act,

trac of Companies have been done. No registration or

(87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on
yond the limit prescribed as per above said section / rules,

repayable on demand :-
Particular 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Amount of Loan or | Amountof Loan or | Percentage to the total Loans and Percentage to the
advance in the advance in the nature | advances in natures of loans(%) total Loans and
Type of Borrower nature of loan of loan outstanding advances in natures
outstanding ( in lakhs) of loans (%)
(X in lakhs)
Related Parties (refer note 46) 16,559.51 316.00 100.00% 100.00%
| Total 16,559.51 316.00 100.00% 100.00%
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Note ~- 43
Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:
*  To ensure Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, and
* To provide adequate return to shareholders

Management assesses the capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company manages
the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. The Company manages its capital requirements by reviewing its net debt position, where net
current borrowing (including current maturities of non-
equivalent and other bank balances.

debt is equal to non-
current borrowings) and short-term borrowing net of cash and cash

Note — 44
Employee benefits

Defined Benefit Plan
The Company has the following Defined Benefit Plans:
® Grartuity (Unfunded)

®Compensated absences (Unfunded)

Risks associated with plan provisions

Discount rate nsk Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's
liability.

Morrality nsk Actual death & liability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the
valuation can impact the liabilities.

Salary nsk Actual salary increase will increase the Plan's Lability. Increase in salary
increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability,

Withdrawal nsk Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and
change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan's liability.

(’ d akh

The leave obligations cover the Company's liablity for sick and earned leaves. The amount of provision of % 0.16 lakhs (31 March
2024 - 2 0.07 lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of
these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued

leave or require payment within the next 12 months, therefore based on the independent actuarial report, only a certain amount of
provision has been presented as current and remaining as non-current.

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic assumptions - -
Actuanial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumptions 0.06 (0.05)
Actuanal (gain)/loss on arising from change in experience assumptions (0.28) (0.07)
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Service cost 3.14 0.3
Net Interest cost 0.19 0.1
Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year 0.21) 0.1:

Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 312 0.6
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Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 264 2.00
Present value of defined benefit obligation received for employees transferred to the - -
Company
Current service cost 314 0.37
Interest cost 0.19 0.15
Actuarial (gain)/loss, net (0.21) 0.12
Benefits paid - -
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 5.76 2.64
- Current 0.16 0.07
- Non-Current 5.60 257
For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were used:
Particulars Comp d ab es
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 7.15% 7.22%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality table Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14)

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan
assets has not been presented.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount factors are
determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’s historical experience.

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation

Year 31 March 2025 | Year 31 March 2024
a) April 2025 - March 2026 0.16 | April 2024 - March 2025 0.07
b) April 2026 - March 2027 0.12 | April 2025 - March 2026 0.06
©) April 2027 - March 2028 0.10 | April 2026 - March 2027 0.05
d) April 2028 - March 2029 0.09 | April 2027 - March 2028 0.05
€) April 2029 - March 2030 0.07 | April 2028 - March 2029 0.04
f) April 2030 — March 2031 086 | April 2029 — March 2030 0.04
) April 2031 onwards 4.36 | April 2030 onwards 233

Sensitivity analysis for compensated absences liability

| 31 Masch 2025 | 31 March 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 5.76 2.64
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.37) 0.17)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.40 0.19

Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 %

b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 %

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.
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Gratuity ) )
The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employee§ who are in
continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the

employec’s last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary

service. Gratuity plan is a non-funded plan.

Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized in other comprehensive income

multiplied for the number of years of

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic assumptions = -
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumptions 0.37 0.18
Actuanial (gain)/loss on arising from change in experience assumptions 0.57 0.28
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under:
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Service cost 1.46 1.12
Net Interest cost 0.75 0.61
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 221 173
Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under:
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 10.45 8.26
Present value of defined benefit obligation received for employees transferred to - -
the Company
Current service cost 1.46 112
Interest cost 0.76 0.61
Acruanal (gain)/loss, net 0.95 0.46
Benefits paid - -
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 13.62 10.45
- Current 0.35 0.28
- Non- Current 13.27 10.17
Particulars Gratuity
31 Macch 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 6.99% 7.22%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Monrality wble Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured
Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14)

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan

assets has not been presented.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount factors are

determined close w each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic marke
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation

ts and that have terms to marurity
s historical experience.

Year 31 March 2025 Year 31 March 2024
a) Apnil 2025 - March 2026 0.35 | April 2024 - March 2025 0.28
b) April 2026 - March 2027 0.27 | April 2025 - March 2026 0.21
c) Apnil 2027 - March 2028 025 | April 2026 - March 2027 0.21
d) Apnil 2028 - March 2029 April 2027 - March 2028 0.19
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e) April 2029 - March 2030 0.19 | Apnl 2028 - March 2029 0.17
f) April 2030 - March 2031 3.36 | Apnl 2029 - March 2030 0.14
2 April 2031 onwards 8.98 | Apzl 2030 onwards 9.25
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity
31 Macch 2025 I 31 March 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 13.62 10.45
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (0.79) (0.61)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.86 0.66
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 13.62 10.45
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.87 0.67
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (0.80) 0.62)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.

Note — 45

Provident Fund

The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India has passed a judgement dated 28 February 2019 and it was held that basic wages, for the
purpose of provident fund, to include allowances which are common for all employees. However, there is uncertainty with respect
to the applicability of the judgement and period from which the same applies. Currently, the Company has not considered any
impact in these financial statements.

Note — 46
Related party transactions
a) Name and nature of relationship with related parties:

[Relationship Name of the related parties
Related parties exercising Embassy Developments Limited
control (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) till
Ultumate Holding Company 26 March 2024
Embassy Developments Limited
Holding Company (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and ealier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)
w.e.f 27 March 2024 ]
Lorita Developers Limited till 26 March 2024
Other related parties
Devona Constructions Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Constructions Limited
Fellow Subsidiaries Indiabulls Projects Limited
Ceres Estate Limited
Devona Developers Limited

Tapir Constructions Limited
Sky Forest Projects Private Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Properties Private Limited)
Ceres Construction Limited

Ceres Infrastructure Limited

Diana Infrastructure Limited

Makala Infrastructure Limited

Fama Constructions Limited

Fama Ilstate Limited

Juventus Land Development Limited
Lucina Buildwell Limited

Zeus Properties Limited

Airmid Properties Limited

Citra Properties Ltd

Corus Real Estate Limited

Varali Developers Limited
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Other enterprises under the Embassy Services Private Limited (w.e.f. 24 January 2025)
control or significant influence
of Key Management Personnel
of the holding company and/
or their relatives*

* With whom transactions have been made during the year.

b) Statement of material transaction with related parties:

Paticul For the Year ended For the Year ended
AT 31 March, 2025 31March, 2024
Loans & advances taken / (repaid), net
Holding company:
Embassy Developments Limited
(Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier (4,059.93) 4,059.93
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Fellow Subsidiaries:
Devona Constructions Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls (4,585.23
Constructions Limited) & »285.23)
Sky Forest Projects Private Limited (formerly known as 1650.00 1
Indiabulls Properties Pavate Limited) :
Indiabulls Projects Limited (4.02) (29.49)
Ceres Estate Limited (88.20) (206.05)
Devona Developers Limited (5.70) (218.23)
Loans & advances (given) /received back, net
Fellow Subsidiaries:
Tapir Constructions Limited (701.47) (316.00)
Ceres Construction Limited (359.12) -
Ceres Infrastructure Limited (353.27) -
Diana Infrastructure Limited (634.20) -
Makala Infrastructure Limited (4,106.34) -
Fama Constructions Limited (403.61) -
Fama Estate Limited (547.71) -
Juventus Land Development Limited (326.01) -
Lucina Buildwell Limited (949.55) -
Zeus Properties Limited (528.78) -
Airmid Properties Limited (673.17) -
Citra Properties Limited (5,927.74) -
Corus Real Estate Limited (320.10) -
Varal Developers Limited (412.43) -
Non-Convertible Debenture issue/(redeem), net
Holding Company:
Embassy Developments Limited
(Formerly Fquinox India Developments Limited and earlier 20,000.00 -
Indiabulls Real Fstare Limiwed
Other enterprises under the control or significant
influence of Key Manag, t Per 1 of the holding
company and/ or their relatives
Technical and management fees ,}
Embassy Services Private Limited M>§ 443.75 -
Q% 4
)

C
<
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Interest expenses on non-convertible debenture
Holding company:
- Embassy Developments Limited
(anncrl\ Equinox India Developments Limited and eaclier 0.01 2
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)
Business Support Expenses
Holding company:
- Embassy Developments Limited
(Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier 34533 577.61
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Project Management Consultancy Expenses
Holding company:
- Embassy Developments Limited
(Formery Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier - 168.74
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
¢) Statement of balances outstanding:
i As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loans & advances from
Holding company:
Embassy Developments Limited
(Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited - 4,059.93
and easlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Fellow Subsidiaries:
Indiabulls Projects Limited 1,947.29 1,951.31
Sky Forest Projects Private Limited (formerly 1.650.00 :
known as Indiabulls Properties Private Limited) sy
Ceres Estate Limited 13,182.30 13,270.50
Devona Developers Limited 556.27 561.97
Loans & advances o
Fellow Subsidiaries:
Tapir Constructons Limited 1017.47 316.00
Ceses Construction Limited 359.12 -
Ceres Infrastructure Limited 353.27 -
Diana Infrastructure Limited 634.20 -
Makala Infrastructure Limited 4,106.34 -
Farna Constructons Limited 403.61 -
Famna Jistate Limited 547.71 -
Juventus Land Development Limited 326.01 -
Lucina Buildwell Limited 949.55 -
Zeus Propertes Limited 528.78 -
Airmid Properties Limited 673.17 -
Citra Properties Limited 5927.74 -
Corus Real Istate Limited LN PRAKGN 320.10 -
Varali Developers Limited 157 con \v\ 412.43 .
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Non-Convertible Debenture

Holding Company:

Embassy Developments Limited
(Formery Equinox India Developments Limited 20,000.00 -
and earber Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Trade Payable

Other enterprises under the control or
significant influence of Key Management
Personnel of the holding company and/ or
their relatives

Embacsy Services Prvate Limited 56.10

Holding company:

- Embassy Developments Limited

(Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited 214.14 733.70

and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited

Note - 47
Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities, not aclmowledsed as debt include:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 Masch 2024
Income tax demand in respect of which appeals have been filed for AY 2014-15 35.16 35.16
GST demand 1n respect of which appeals have been filed for F.Y 2018-19 30.72 -

There are certain Allottees of “Mega Mall, Jodhpur” Group housing residential project who had filed their respective complaints
and are pending adjudicanion before RAJASTHAN RERA Authority, Jodhpur via, which they majorly alleged their grievance with
respect to delay to the tune of Z 0.43 lakhs,

Based on the defence taken in these matters and the independent legal advice from the Counsels, the management believes that
there 15 3 reasonably likelihood that the there is no material liability will devolve on the Company in respect of these matters.

There aze no other conungent liabilities and commitments to be reported as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Note - 48
Reconcilistion of liabilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows

The changes in the Company’s Labiliues anising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Panticulars Cront Totl
borrowings
Net debt as at 01 April 2023 20,822.78 20,822.78
Proceeds from cursent/non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 5,630.13 5,630.13
Kepayment of current/non current horowings (including current maturities) (6,609.20) (6,609.20)
Net debt as at 31 Masch 2024 19,843.71 19,843.71
Proceeds from current/non current borowings (including current maturities) 21,956.50 21,956.50
—Kc';i.)lllc;ll_l].;.;;l;ll;/llll; current ImllT:wmm (including current maturities) (+,464.35) (-h+46+4.35)
Net debrt as at 31 March 2025 37,335.86 37,335.86
Note ~ 49

Segmental information

The Company's primary businesy segment 18 reflected based on principal business activities carried on by the Company ie.
purchase, sale, dealing, rel estate project advisory, construction und development of real estate projects and all other related
activiies which s per Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’ is considered to be the only reportable business segment. The
Company derives its major revenues from construction and development of real estate projects and its custapEreare widespread.
The Company is operating in India which is considered as a single geographical segmeat, I8
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Note - 50
Business Combination of Holding Company

The Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi Bench ("NCLAT"), on 7 January 2025, approved the scheme
of amalgamation of Nam Estates Private Limited ("NAM") and Embassy One Commercial Property Developments Private
Limited ("EOCPDPL") with Embassy Developments Limited ("EDL") (formerly known as Equinox India Developments Limited
and earlier known as Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Scheme") pursuant to sec 230
to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016. Pursuant to the NCLAT Order, EDL and NAM have filed the certified true copy

of the court order with the respective jurisdictional Registrar of Companies on 24 January 2025, thereby giving effect to the scheme
("Effective Date").

Subsequent to the scheme becoming effective, a few of the current NAM shareholders, namely JV Holding Private Limited
(VHPL), four individuals, and two other entities (referred to as the "Promoter/Promoter Group"), became the largest shareholders
of the EDL, the company's holding company.

Note - 51
Audit Trail

As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification, proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014, for the
financial year commencing 1 April 2023, every company which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account,
shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit
log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit

trail cannot be disabled. The interpretation and guidance on what level edit log and audit trail needs to be maintained evolved
during the year and continues to evolve.

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year, which has feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility at application level as well as database level and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Recording of audit trail (edit logs) can be disabled using restricted privileged rights for direct
data changes at database level. Since the company has other necessary controls in place, which are operating effectively, this feature
will not adversely impact its data and audit log retention directly at database level.

Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention except that

the audit trail at the database level for the Company has not been preserved in the accounting software for the period from 1 April
2023 to 31 March 2024.

Note - 52

2. During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has assessed the financial viability of its ongoing real estate
development project as an onerous contract in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 37 — Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. Due to adverse market conditions, escalated construction costs, and a
reduction in expected sales revenue from the project, the unavoidable costs of fulfilling the contractual obligations under

the Project exceed the expected economic benefits. Accordingly, the Company has recognized a provision of ¥ 965.97
lakhs in respect of the estimated loss on the Project.

b, Exceptional item for the year ended 31 March 2025 includes impairment of loans and advances of Z 326.01 lakhs as per
the provisions of Ind AS 109

Note — 53
Other matters

a. The Company has not entered into any derivative instrument during the year. The Company does not have any foreign
currency exposures towards receivables, payables or any other derivative instrament that have not been hedged.

b.In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required to be
credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all current assets and long term loans & advances, appearing in the balance sheet
as at 31 March 2025, have a value on realization, in the ordinary course of the Company’s business, at least equal to the
amount at which they are stated in the financial statements, In the opinion of the boaggd-Gtodusch
required to be made against the recoverability of these balances.
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d. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary company of Embassy Developments Limited
(Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited), whether directly or indirectly
which is having a net worth of Z 10,17,098.00 lakhs. The Company will get all necessary support financially and otherwise
from its holding company and thus, the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
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